
(TENTATIVE) BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

February 20, 2024 – 5:00 PM 

Effingham County Administrative Complex 

804 South Laurel Street, Springfield GA 31329 

 

The Georgia Conflict of Interest in Zoning Action Statue (O.C.G.A. §§ 36-67A-1 et seq.) requires disclosure of certain 
campaign contributions made by applicants for rezoning actions and by opponents of rezoning application.  A rezoning 
applicant or opponent of a rezoning application must disclose contributions or gifts which in aggregate total $250.00 or 
more if made within the last two years to a current member of Effingham County Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, 
or other Effingham County official who will consider the application.  The campaign contribution disclosure requirement 
applies to an opponent of a rezoning application who publishes his or her opposition by appearance before the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners or by any other oral or written communication to a member or members of the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners.  Disclosure must be reported to the Board of Commissioners by applicants within ten 
(10) days after the rezoning application is filed and by opponents at least five (5) days prior to the first hearing by the 
Planning Board.  Any person knowing failing to comply with these requirements shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
“Individuals with disabilities who require special needs to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities should contact the County Clerk at 912-754-2123 
promptly to afford the County time to create reasonable accommodations for those persons.” 

**PLEASE TURN OFF YOUR CELL PHONE 
 

Agenda 

Watch us live on our YouTube page: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Invocation 

IV. Pledge to the American Flag 

V. Agenda Approval - Consideration of a resolution to approve the agenda. 

VI. Minutes - Consideration to approve the February 3-4, 2024 retreat minutes and the February 
6, 2024 regular meeting minutes 

VII. Public Comments - Comments shall pertain to the agenda items only.  Should you wish to 
make remarks, clearly state your full name into the microphone before commencing to 
speak. 

VIII. Correspondence - Documents from this meeting are located in the Clerk's Office and on the 
Board of Commissioner's website. 

IX. Consent Agenda - This section shall include all routine items for which there will be no 
discussion.  Should a need arise for a debate, the item can be moved to the appropriate area 
of the agenda. 

1. [2024-074 Contract] 

Consideration to approve to renew the Docuquest Service Contract for the Tax 
Commissioner's Office 

 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ


(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – February 20, 2024 

2. [2024-075 Agreement] 

Consideration to renew a Memorandum of Understanding between the Sexual Assault 
Response Team and the Effingham County Correctional Institution for forensic 
examination services  

3. [2024-076 Agreement] 

Consideration to approve to renew the Public Wi-Fi Service Agreement with Planters 
Communications LLC for a one-year period from March 20, 2024 to March 20, 2025 

4. [2024-077 Agreement] 

Consideration to approve to ratify and affirm an Assurances and Maintenance 
Agreement to FEMA for an Existing Generator Grant Application 

5. [2024-078 Grant Application] 

Consideration to approve to submit a Grant Application to the Georgia Department of 
Agriculture (GDA) Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant Program  

6. [2024-017 Resolution] 

Consideration to approve to ratify and affirm amended Resolution# 024-004 to include 
the fee for the office of State Court Judge (originally approved 01/16/2024) 

X. Unfinished Business - Contains items held from a previous agenda. 

1. [2023-517 Sketch Plan] Chelsie Fernald 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by MRD Partners, LLC, for  
a Sketch Plan located on McCall Road for "Horizon Business Center" zoned I-1 Map#  
450D Parcels# 4A, 4B & 5 in the Second District (postponed 11/07/2023, 12/05/2023, 
01/16/2024) 

2. [2024-056 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Eric Smith for 
a conditional use for a rural business located at 445 Golden Drive Map# 450A Parcel 
#56, in the Second District (postponed 02/06/2024) 

XI. New Business 

1. [2024-079 Position] Sarah Mausolf 

Consideration to approve an additional Position (Deputy Coroner) for the Coroner's 
Office 

2. [2024-080 Letter] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve to ratify and affirm an Indication of Roundabout Support 
Letter for a roundabout at Hwy 30 at Kolic Helmey Road. 

3. [2024-081 Resolution] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve  Resolution# 024-010  for the surplus of various items 

4. [2024-082 Resolution] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 024-011 to amend the 2024 Fiscal Year Budget 

5. [2024-083 Policy] Mark Barnes 

2



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – February 20, 2024 

Consideration to approve Addendum No. 16 to amend the Effingham County Financial 
Policy 

 

6. [2024-084 Resolution] Tim Callanan 

Consideration to approve Resolution# 024-009  to condemn a property located at 224 
Courthouse Road, Springfield related to the Baker Park Improvements 

7. [2024-085 Deed/Agreement] Stephanie Johnson 

Consideration to approve a Quitclaim Deed and terminate an Easement Agreement 
between Effingham County Board of Commissioners and Amy M. Helmly and Vicki Tuten 
Renfroe located across a property on Brogdon Road  

XII. Reports from Commissioners & Administrative Staff 

XIII. Executive Session - Discussion of Personnel, Property and Pending Litigation 

XIV. Executive Session Minutes - Consideration to approve the February 3, 2024 retreat 
executive session minutes 

XV. Adjournment 

3



Staff Report 

 
Subject: Docuquest Service Contract  

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Tax Commissioner 

Meeting Date: 2/20/24 

Item Description: Docuquest Service Contract for Tax Commissioner’s Office 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approving the service contract with 

Docuquest. 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The Tax Commissioner had requested to purchase the copier currently utilized in 

her office. The Service Contract was approved March 3, 2020.  

 The machine currently has a service contract for a monthly fee of $25.00, which 

includes 3,000 copies/prints with an overage of .007 per page, as well as all 

parts, labor, and toner.  

 The Tax Commissioner’s Office has requested to continue with the service 

agreement.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approve the Docuquest Service Contract. 

2. Do not approve the Docuquest Service Contract. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1. 

 

Other Alternatives: 2. 

 

Department Review: Purchasing, Tax Commissioner, I.T. 

 

Funding Source: Current Budget for Tax Commissioner 

 

Attachments: 

1. Docuquest Service Contract 

 

 

 

 

4

Item IX. 1.



5

Item IX. 1.



6

Item IX. 1.



Staff Report 

Subject: Consideration to renew an MOU between the Sexual Assault Response Team and the 
Effingham County Correctional Institution for forensic examination services  
Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 
Department: Prison 
Meeting Date: 02/20/2024 
Item Description: MOU between the Sexual Response Assault Response Team and the 
Effingham County Correctional Institution 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends renewal of the MOU between the Sexual 
Assault Response Team and the Effingham County Correctional Institution for forensic 
examination services 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Previously, the Effingham County Prison had an MOU with the Statesboro Regional Sexual
Assault Center; however, The Center does not wish to continue to see inmates.

 This is being done in conjunction with the Prison Rape Elimination (PREA) Act. The Prison
Rape Elimination Act of 2003 (PREA) is the first United States Federal law passed dealing
with the sexual assault of prisoners. The bill was signed into law on September 4, 2003.

 There is no cost to the County for services associated with the MOU. If fees are paid for
services rendered, they will be reimbursed to the County by the Georgia Department of
Corrections.

 The MOU has been reviewed and approved to form by the County Attorney.

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 
1. Board approval to renew the MOU between the Sexual Response Assault Response Team

and the Effingham County Correctional Institution.
2. Take no action.

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: Purchasing 

Funding Source: Department 16 if needed 

Attachments: MOU between the Sexual Response Assault Response Team and the Effingham 
County Correctional Institution. 

7

Item IX. 2.



8

Item IX. 2.



9

Item IX. 2.



10

Item IX. 2.



Staff Report 

 

Subject: Consideration to renew the Public Wi-Fi Service Agreement with Planters 

Communications LLC for a one-year period from March 20, 2024 to March 20, 2025. 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent, Chris Reed, I.T. Director 

Department: Purchasing and I.T. 

Meeting Date: 2/20/24 

Item Description: Public Wi-Fi Service 
 

Summary Recommendation: Approval to renew 
 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The recreation complex is a state-of-the-art facility that requires fiber optic cable 
service in order to offer a public Wi-Fi system as well as point-of-sale equipment 
at the concession stand.  

 County data communications for the Parks and Landscapes Department is also 
provided by this connection and when the Recreation and Sports Management 
Department move to the complex, their data communications will be provided by 
this connection also. 

 Planters Communications has fiber optic on site. 

 The Planters Foundation gave the County a grant to pay for the equipment 
needed for public Wi-Fi. 

 The agreement is for the corresponding service required to run the system.  The 
service is top of the line, with 1 gig which handles hundreds of simultaneous users. 

 The agreement is for a 72 month period which has to be approved annually by 
the Board.  

 The agreement can be cancelled with 60 days written notice by either party. 
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Board approval to allow the Agreement with Planters Communications, LLC for the 
public Wi-Fi service at the Clarence Morgan Recreation Complex to automatically 
renew for the period March 20, 2024 to March 20, 2025.  

2. Cancel the agreement and issue a termination letter to Planters Communications, 
LLC. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 
 

Other Alternatives: 2 
 

Department Review: I.T. 
 

Funding Source: $500 month – General Fund 
 

Attachments: Planters Communications, LLC Service Contract, Multi Year Addendum 
and No-Disclosure Agreement. 
 

11

Item IX. 3.



12

Item IX. 3.



13

Item IX. 3.



14

Item IX. 3.



15

Item IX. 3.



16

Item IX. 3.



17

Item IX. 3.



18

Item IX. 3.



19

Item IX. 3.



20

Item IX. 3.



21

Item IX. 3.



22

Item IX. 3.



23

Item IX. 3.



24

Item IX. 3.



Staff Report 

 
Subject: Approval to Ratify Assurances and a Maintenance Agreement to 

FEMA for a Previously Approved Generator Grant Application 

Author:  Clint Hodges, EMA Director 

Department:  20-EMA 

Meeting Date: 02/20/2024 

Item Description: Approval to Ratify Assurances and a Maintenance Agreement to 

FEMA for a Previously Approved Generator Grant Application 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approving to ratify an Assurances for 

Construction Programs and a Maintenance Agreement to be included within Effingham County’s 

existing grant application to FEMA for emergency generators. 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

1. In 2023, EEMA submitted applications to FEMA for several emergency generators for 
critical infrastructure.  

2. Staff were forwarded additional information needed in early February 2024, which had to 
be turned in by February 9th, 2024. 

3. The County Manager signed the Assurances and the Maintenance Agreement, subject to 
ratification by the Board of Commissioners. 

4. These changes are not anticipated to require any additional funding, other than the 
previously approved 25% match, should Effingham County be selected for approval. 

 

Options/Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

 

Recommended: Approval to Ratify Assurances and a Maintenance Agreement to FEMA 

for a Previously Approved Generator Grant Application 

 

Other Alternative(s): Deny  

 

Department Review: EMA, County Manager 

 

Funding Source: N/A 
 

Attachments: Construction Assurances, Maintenance Agreement 

25

Item IX. 4.



26

Item IX. 4.



27

Item IX. 4.



28

Item IX. 4.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    GA Department of Agriculture Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant 

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 2/20/2024  

Item Description: Consideration to submit a grant application to the Georgia 
Department of Agriculture (GDA) Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant Program. 
 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval to submit a grant application to the Georgia Department of 
Agriculture (GDA) Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant Program. 
 

Executive Summary: 

When funds are available, licensed municipal animal shelters located in Georgia, licensed 

nonprofit animal rescue organizations with 501(c)(3) status located in Georgia, and 

veterinary medical foundations with 501(c)(3) status located in Georgia may apply to the 

GDA for a grant to assist with sterilization procedures on dogs and cats. The purpose of 

the Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant Program is to provide financial assistance with 

sterilization procedures. GDA hopes that the grant funds will ease the burden of the cost 

of sterilization procedures and increase the number of dogs and cats sterilized in Georgia. 

If awarded, the Effingham County Animal Shelter will use the funds to sterilize 50 dogs 

and 50 cats. 

 Background: 
1. Effingham County Animal Shelter is requesting $10,000. 
2. The grant is competitive. 
3. No cost share requirement. 
4. Application deadline is March 2, 2024. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve GDA Dog and Cat Sterilization grant application submittal.  
2. Do not approve GDA Dog and Cat Sterilization grant application submittal. 
3. Provide Staff with Direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve GDA Dog and Cat Sterilization grant 

application submittal. 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

29

Item IX. 5.



Department Review: (list departments) 

Effingham County Animal Shelter  

 

Funding Source: 

No cost share requirement 

 

Attachments: 

1. GDA Grant Explanation and Instructions 

 

 

 

30

Item IX. 5.



DCSP Grant Information
Grant Information 2024 Grant Cycle

Background
Dog and cat overpopulation is a tragic problem that affects all areas of Georgia. Each year,

thousands of healthy, friendly dogs and cats are euthanized because of pet overpopulation. In

2003, the Georgia General Assembly created the Dog and Cat Reproductive Sterilization Support

Program to help with this problem through the spaying and neutering of dogs and cats. Currently,

funds are raised by the sale of 3 dog and cat license plates, the yearly tax check off and direct

donations. In 2014, the Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant program was created. Since the program’s

inception, thousands of procedures have been performed by Georgia veterinarians coordinating

with grant recipients.

Purpose
The purpose of the Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant Program is to provide financial assistance with

sterilization procedures. The Department hopes that grant funds will ease the burden of

sterilization procedures and increase the number of dogs and cats sterilized in Georgia. It is further

noted that the intent of the grant is to reduce the number of animals that are reproducing to reduce

overpopulation pressures (not to subsidize the cost of adopting from shelters).

Program Overview
Grant applications will be assessed by a grant review committee and funding will be awarded

based on the highest priority grant proposals after considering factors such as: targeting of

important animal populations; ability to increase surgery numbers; cost-benefit ratio and record of

grant applicant and sustainability. It is a priority to have a substantial portion of the funds, at least,

covering surgeries for animals not otherwise legally obligated to be altered. As a result, programs

altering a greater portion of owned animals and those allowing shelters to permanently increase the

percent of animals altered prior to leaving the shelter for adoptive homes may be prioritized for

grant funding. The applicant’s willingness and ability to assist with promotion of the grant program

may also be considered.

All eligible organizations must reside in Georgia to be eligible for the Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant

Program. Once a grant has been awarded, the recipient must complete a final progress report

showing all sterilization procedures performed. For the 2024 grant cycle, the final progress report

will include the requirement to provide a record of each sterilization procedure that is performed

using grant funds. Grant funds may only be used for sterilization surgery and may not be used for

capital or administrative expenses or for procedures not directly related to sterilization surgery,

such as, promotions, vaccinations, testing, licensing, food, medicine, and/or other medical

procedures.

31

Item IX. 5.

https://agr.georgia.gov/


Non-Pro�t Animal Rescues and Veterinary Medical
Foundations
Nonprofit Animal Rescue Organizations must be licensed by the Georgia Department of Agriculture.

Nonprofit organizations including Veterinary Medical Foundations applying for funds are required to

have been in existence for at least 12 months and have 501(c)(3) status at the time of filing the

grant application. Nonprofits must provide a copy of the nonprofit status form 501(c)(3) issued by

the Internal Revenue Service. (Do not send a copy of a tax return or a copy of incorporation by the

Georgia Secretary of State to fulfill this requirement). Nonprofit rescues must also provide proof

of incorporation by the Georgia Secretary of State.

County and Municipal Shelters
Municipal animal shelters must be licensed by the Georgia Department of Agriculture. Effective July

1, 1999, every county and city within that county is required to adopt a Service Delivery Strategy.

This strategy is an implementation plan among cities and counties to provide local government

services and resolve land use conflicts within the county. These strategies are submitted to the

Georgia Department of Community Affairs �DCA� for approval and the DCA is in charge of

monitoring compliance. Because of this law, no state-administered financial assistance can be

awarded to a local municipality that is not in compliance. To determine whether your municipality is

in compliance, visit DCA’s website at: https://www.dca.ga.gov/. All local municipality applicants

verifying eligibility must submit a compliance certification.

Application and Submission
The application for the Dog and Cat Sterilization Grant is an online process. It is only available

during the applicable 30-day application period. It can be accessed at

https://www.agr.georgia.gov/dcsp-applicants-and-grantees. All applicants must provide a letter of

collaboration from a Georgia licensed veterinarian that will be performing the sterilization

procedures. The grant recipient is required to utilize the collaborating veterinarian(s) of record.

Veterinarians may only be substituted with prior notice and approval from the Dog and Cat

Sterilization Program Manager. The application period for the 2024 grant is February 1, 2024 �

4�30 pm on March 2, 2024. 

Noti�cation of Awards
Applicants will be notified of grant decisions no later than 45 days following the close of the grant

application period. To further promote the program grant funds may be awarded in person at a

destination and date to be chosen by Dog and Cat Sterilization Program Manager. In this event, a

representative of the organization receiving the grant award will be required to attend the

presentation.

Availability of Funds

Grant funds will be awarded based on availability of funds. The grant is usually offered on a 14�16-

month cycle. Grant funds may only be used for spay and/or neuter procedures on dogs or cats.
32

Item IX. 5.

https://www.dca.ga.gov/
https://www.agr.georgia.gov/dcsp-applicants-and-grantees


Grant requests must not exceed applicant's ability to perform services within the 12-month period.

Any funds unused in 12 months must be returned to the program by mail to:

Georgia Dog and Cat Sterilization Program

19 M.L.K. Jr., Dr., SW. Room 112

Atlanta, Ga. 30334

If the recipient has a change in ownership or corporate structure during the grant cycle, the DCSP

Grant Administrator must be notified prior to the change and can be reached at

dcsp@agr.georgia.gov.

Veterinary Collaboration Agreement
The Veterinary Collaboration Agreement is an agreement between the DCSP grant recipient and a

Georgia licensed veterinarian to perform sterilization procedures at a set cost for the spending of

awarded grant funds. If there will be multiple veterinarians performing sterilization procedures

during the grant cycle, then this should be specified by filling out a Veterinary Collaboration

Agreement for each veterinarian in advance. Should an additional veterinarian be utilized during the

grant cycle, the DCSP Grant Administrator must be notified and approve a new Veterinary

Collaboration Agreement. If a veterinarian is listed on the final progress report that does not have

an approved collaboration agreement, the applicant will be disqualified from the next grant cycle.

The DCSP Grant Administrator can be reached at dcsp@agr.georgia.gov.

Final Progress Reports
The final progress report is a record of the number of sterilization procedures performed and a

breakdown of the cost for each procedure. Every recipient of the award must email the final

progress report with an itemized procedure record to dcsp@agr.georgia.gov by the deadline

determined by the DCSP Grant Administrator. The deadline date is determined and published after

funds have been dispersed to grantees. Final progress reports are to be submitted by the deadline.

If the final progress report submission is late or excludes the itemized record, the applicant will be

disqualified from the next round of grants. The final progress report can be found on the website at

https://www.agr.georgia.gov/dcsp-applicants-and-grantees.

State Audit
Any recipient of a grant made by a state agency shall be subject to audit by the state auditor for

the purpose of confirming compliance with state law and the performance of the terms of the grant

pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 28�5�125

33

Item IX. 5.

mailto:dcsp@agr.georgia.gov
mailto:dcsp@agr.georgia.gov
mailto:dcsp@agr.georgia.gov
https://www.agr.georgia.gov/dcsp-applicants-and-grantees


 

Staff Report 
Subject:   2024 Qualifying Fees (revised) 

Author:  Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk 

Department:  Administration 

Meeting Date: 02/20/2024 

Item Description: Consideration to approve to set and publish the 2024 Qualification Fees 
 

Summary Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of the request.  
 

Executive Summary: 

1. The following county offices will be up for election:  Clerk of Superior Court, Coroner, Sheriff, Tax 
Commissioner, Solicitor General, members of the Board of Commissioners (Chairman-at-Large, 1st 
and 4th districts) Probate Judge, Chief Magistrate, State Court Judge, and members of the Board 
of Education (2nd, 3rd, and 5th Districts). 

2. The fee calculations have been verified by the Office of Human Resources.  
3. A revised resolution which includes the State Court Judge is provided.  There will be a special 

election for this this office in May 2024.  

 
Background: 

State law pertaining to qualifying fees, requires each county governing authority to fix and publish 

qualifying fees for county offices not later than February 1 of any year in which a general primary, 

nonpartisan election, or general election is to be held. 
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the amended resolution to set qualifying fees as presented. 
2. To not approve the amended resolution.    

 

Recommended Alternative: Staff recommends Alternative 1  
 

Other Alternatives: N/A  Department Review: Administration 
 

Funding Source:  Funding for advertising allocated from the Elections Office budget.  
 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 

 
34

Item IX. 6.



RESOLUTION OF QUALIFYING FEES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 024-004 

A RESOLUTION OF THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SETTING THE 

QUALIFYING FEES FOR ELECTED COUNTY OFFICE FOR THE YEAR 2024 
 

 WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners is the governing authority for Effingham County, 
Georgia; and 

 WHEREAS the Board of Commissioners is required by O.C.G.A. § 21-2-131, to set and 
publish qualifying fees for county offices not later than February 1 of any year in which a general 
primary, nonpartisan election or general election is to be held; and 

 WHEREAS the qualifying fee is required to be 3% of the base salary (exclusive of 
supplements, cost of living adjustment and longevity increases) for the offices shown below except 
the Coroner and State Court Judge. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby approves the qualifying fees 
for elected office for the year 2024 as follows: 

COUNTY OFFICE TOTAL GROSS SALARY 

FOR 2024 

3% QUALIFYING FEE 

County Commissioners  

(Chairman, 1st, and 4th districts) 

Chairman Base Salary: 

$19,854.28 

1st District Base Salary: 

$18.049.35 

4th District Base Salary: 

$18,049.35 

 

$595.63 

 

$541.48 

 

$541.48 

Solicitor General Base Salary: $103,879.58 $3,116.39 

Clerk of Superior Court Base Salary: $75,327.48 $2,259.82 

Sheriff Base Salary: $90,246.74 $2,707.40 

Chief Magistrate Base Salary: $76,834.09 $2,305.02 

Tax Commissioner Base Salary: $75,327.48 $2,259.82 

Probate Judge Base Salary: $75,327.48 $2,259.82 

State Court Judge Base Salary: $120,411.27 $3,612.34 
Coroner  $755.25 
Board of Education  

(2nd, 3rd, and 5th districts) 

 $132.00 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, these qualifying fees shall be published in the legal 
organ for the county as required by law.  Said notice of candidacy and payment of fees shall be 
filed to the county political party or election superintendent as specified by O.C.G.A § 21-2-132 
beginning at 9:00 AM Monday March 4, 2024, and ends at 12 noon Friday, March 8, 2024.  

 35

Item IX. 6.



Staff Report 

Subject: Sketch Plan (Second District) 
Author: Chelsie Fernald, Planner II 
Department: Development Services 
Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 
Item Description: MRD Partners, LLC request approval of a sketch plan for “Horizon Business Center.” 
Located on McCall Road, zoned AR-1 & R-2, proposed zoning I-1. [Map# 450D Parcel# 4A, 4B & 5] 

 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of a sketch plan for “Horizon Business 
Center.” 

 

Executive Summary/Background 

 The request for approval of a sketch plan is a requirement of Section 5.1 – Sketch Plan. 

The purpose of a sketch plan is to provide both the applicant and the county an opportunity to review 

the proposed development before significant financial resources have been invested. Therefore, the 

sketch plan does not require the certification of an engineer, surveyor, or other professional. Existing 

features, including water bodies, wetlands, and flood zone limits, are required to be surveyed for the 

sketch plan. 

 Collectively this development proposes to be a 156,000 square foot building with 30 docking positions, 2 

drive in ramps, 18 trailer positions, and 70 commuter parking spaces. 

 The proposed development is bordered to the North and West by the OmniTrax Industrial Development 

along McCall Road. 

 There is a proposed 300’ undisturbed buffer along the subdivision to the south and along the industrial 

zoned properties there is a 25’ proposed undisturbed buffer. 

 The applicant has asked for a variance to the buffers along McCall Road, the proposed buffer is 25’. 

 Once Gateway Parkway is completed, this development will utilize that access. 

 At the September 12, 2023 Planning Board Meeting, Mr. Alan Zipperer made a motion for approval with 

staff recommendations. Mr. Ryan Thompson seconded, the motion carried unanimously. 

 At the October 3, 2023 Board of Commissioners Meeting, this item was postponed to the November 7, 

2023 Board of Commissioners meeting during agenda approval.  

 At the January 16, 2024 Board of Commissioners Meeting, this item was postponed to the February 20, 

2024 Board of Commissioners meeting during agenda approval.   

 After Sketch Plan approval, staff will follow-up with a Notice to Proceed, summarizing requirements and 

recommendations. 

 
 

Alternatives 
1. Approve the sketch plan for “Horizon Business Center.” 
2. Deny the sketch plan for “Horizon Business Center.” 

 
Recommended Alternative:  1 Other Alternatives: 2 
Department Review: Development Services FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments: 1. Sketch Plan Application 2. Sketch Plan 3. Aerial Photograph 

36

Item X. 1.



37

Item X. 1.



38

Item X. 1.



39

Item X. 1.



40

Item X. 1.



41

Item X. 1.



42

Item X. 1.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Chelsie Fernald, Senior Planner 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 
 
Item Description: Eric Smith requests a conditional use for a rural business. Located at 445 Golden 
Drive. [Map# 450A Parcel# 56] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application and recommends approval of the request for a conditional use for a rural 
business. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 The request for Residential Business Conditional Use is a requirement of Appendix C – Zoning Ordinance, 

Article III-General Provisions, Section 3.15B - Rural Business. 

 The applicant requests a conditional use to operate a RV remodeling business. 

 The property is currently zoned AR-1 and Golden Drive is a County maintained road.  

 Applicant is working through the conditional use process to come into compliance, as this is an on-going 

Code Enforcement investigation. 

 At the January 10, 2024, Planning Board meeting, Mr. Ryan Thompson made a motion for approval with 

the following added conditions: 

- A maximum number of 5 campers is allowed on the property at a time. 

- A 7ft privacy fence around the area where the rural business will take place. 

- Only interior maintenance may be performed on the campers/RV, no automotive or paint repair. 

 Mr. Peter Higgins second the motion and it carried unanimously.  

 At the February 6, 2024, Board of Commissioners meeting, the condition was added that the area the 

business would be conducted behind the home, and not encroach into the front yard.  

 
Alternatives  
 
1. Approve the request of a conditional use for a rural business with the following conditions: 

- The applicant shall provide proof of residence. 

- The applicant shall obtain, and keep in good standing, an Effingham County Occupational Tax Certificate 

(business license). 

- A maximum number of 5 campers is allowed on the property at a time. 

- A 7ft privacy fence around the area where the rural business will take place. 

- Only interior maintenance may be performed on the campers/RV, no automotive or paint repair.  

- The business will be conducted behind the home and not encroach into the front yard.    

 

2. Deny the request of a conditional use for a rural business. 

Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1. Zoning Map Amendment  

43

Item X. 2.



STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

450A-56 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

450A-56 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, ERIC SMITH has filed an application for a conditional use to allow for a rural business; map and parcel number 

450A-56, located in the 2nd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 6, 2024 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on January 17, 2024; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on December 20, 2023; and 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT a conditional use to allow for a rural business; map and parcel number 450A-56, located 

in the 2nd commissioner district, is approved, with the following conditions: 

- The applicant shall provide proof of residence. 

- The applicant shall obtain, and keep in good standing, an Effingham County Occupational Tax Certificate (business 

license). 

- A maximum number of 5 campers is allowed on the property at a time. 

- A 7ft privacy fence around the area where the rural business will take place. 

- Only interior maintenance may be performed on the campers/RV, no automotive or paint repair. 

- The business will be conducted behind the home and not encroach into the front yard.    

    

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:      FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

44

Item X. 2.



Staff Report 
 
Subject: Requesting Additional Position- Coroner 
Author:  Sarah Mausolf, Director 
Department:  Human Resources and Risk Management 
Meeting Date: February 20, 2024 
Item Description: Requesting Additional Position for the Coroner 
 
Summary Recommendation: 
Staff is requesting authorization to approve the addition of a Deputy Coroner. 
 
Executive Summary/Background 
Due to the increased caseload, Coroner David Exley requests an additional Deputy 
Coroner.  
 
Alternatives for Commission to Consider 
1. Approve the request for an additional Deputy Coroner. 
2. Disapprove and provide staff with guidance. 
 
 
Recommended Alternative: Staff recommends Alternative 1. 
 
Other Alternatives: None. 
 
Department Review: County Manager, Finance, Coroner, and Human Resources. 
 
Funding Source: Already budgeted. 

45

Item XI. 1.



Staff Report 
Subject: Ratification of Approval of an Indication of Roundabout Support Letter 

Author: Alison Bruton, Procurement and Capital Projects Manager 

Department:  

Meeting Date: February 20, 2024  

Item Description: Indication of Roundabout Support Letter 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the ratification for the 

Indication of Roundabout Support Letter 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 This letter of support was required for PI 0020095, the roundabout construction 

at SR 30 and Kolic Helmey Road.  

 The Board of Commissioners has already approved the development agreement 

for this project.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Ratification of Approval of an Indication of Roundabout Support Letter 

2. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Procurement and CP 

Funding Source: TSPLOST, Operating 

Attachments: Indication of Roundabout Support Letter 

 

 

 

 

46

Item XI. 2.



47

Item XI. 2.



48

Item XI. 2.



49

Item XI. 2.



50

Item XI. 2.



51

Item XI. 2.



52

Item XI. 2.



53

Item XI. 2.



54

Item XI. 2.



55

Item XI. 2.



56

Item XI. 2.



57

Item XI. 2.



58

Item XI. 2.



59

Item XI. 2.



60

Item XI. 2.



61

Item XI. 2.



62

Item XI. 2.



Staff Report 
 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Resolution of Surplus 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Various 

Meeting Date: February 20, 2024   

Item Description: Surplus 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Resolution 

 

Executive Summary/Background:  

 From time to time the County has broken, unused, damaged or extra inventory. In 
order for the county to properly dispose of these items they must be declared 
surplus in accordance with O.C.G.A § 36-9-2 which states that the county “…may, 
by order entered onto its minutes, direct the disposal of any real property which may 
be lawfully disposed of and make and execute good and sufficient title thereof on 
behalf of the County.”  

 This resolution consists of vehicles and equipment which have either been replaced 
or are no longer in use by the various departments.  
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Board’s approval of the Resolution of Surplus. 
2. Do not approve the Resolution of Surplus 
 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

 

Other Alternatives: 2 

 

Department Review: Various 

 

Funding Source: NA 

 

Attachments:  

 Resolution of Surplus 
 

 

 

63

Item XI. 3.



Description Department Year Make Model
Serial Number / Identifying 

Number
Amount UOM

Dump truck Public Works 2000 GMC C Series Truck 1GDP7H1C9YJ515937

Dump Truck Public Works 1998 Ford Dump Truck 1FDXF80E3WVA15204

Dump Truck Public Works 2009 Freightliner M2112 1FVHC5CV69HAH1834

Wheel Loader Public Works Caterpillar 983G

Tractor Public Works Massey Freguson 4243 25134?

Tractor Public Works 1998 John Deere 5410 25TR126

Wood Chipper Public Works Vermeer BC 1000XL 25093

Semi Truck Public Works 2001 Volvo Tractor 4V4NC9GH31N307751

Low boy trailer Public Works Fontaine 25109?

Tractor/ Boom Ax Public Works John Deere/ Alamo 7130 25TR135

Stationary Generator Public Works Generac 50KW

Vibratory Roller Public Works Caterpillar CS563C 25065

Boom Ax Public Works Alamo MB22‐2

Vehicle Lift Public Works AMMCO 2 Post Lift

Bucket‐Mini excavator Public Works 2ea‐ Mini excavator bucket

Bucket‐ Excavator, Various sizes Public Works 5ea‐ excavator bucket

Excavator Grapple Public Works Grapple

Water Tank Public Works 5000? gallon water tank

Tank Public Works 250? Gallon tank

Trailer Public Works Sprayer tank/ Trailer

Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County Georgia, in regular session assembled on February 20, 2024 by this resolution declare the following described 
property surplus and authorize the public sale, or disposal thereof:

NOTICE OF SALE

64

Item XI. 3.



 Seeder Public Works Land Pride 3 Point Seeder

Mower Public Works 6' 3 point bush hog mower

Disk/ Harrow Public Works 8' 3 point disk/ harrow

Root Rake Public Works Loader Root Rake

Vehicle ECSO 2019 Dodge Durango 1C4SDJFTXKC631747

Vehicle ECSO 2021 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT1MH664087

Vehicle ECSO 2021 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT5MH664089

Honda PPV Fan Fire Department Honda GC01‐2351696 1

Honad PPV Fan Fire Department Honda GC01‐3206892 1

Honda PPV Fan Fire Department Honda GC01‐3210434 1

Gas can mounts Fire Department Zico 10

PPV Fan  Fire Department 5901925 1

Honda Water pump  Fire Department Honda GCAFT‐2734098 1

Enforcer portable exingushers Fire Department Enforcer 2

Grant portable water monitor Fire Department Grant 1

Scagg Lawn mower 61 Cheeta Fire Department Scagg 61 Cheeta 1

Davey  water pump Fire Department Davey 130508YD10213 1

Hurst power unit Fire Department Hurst 1

hurst spreader  Fire Department Hurst 2

Hurst Cutter Fire Department Hurst 1

Akron Hose clamps Fire Department Akron 2

Lincon weld pack 100 Fire Department Lincon 10477U1981100182 1

Honda Gx 100 motor Fire Department Honda DPU3000983 1

Electric PPV  Fire Department 50BC03530X 1

Eagle Breathing Air Compressor Model  OGO934 Fire Department Eagle Model OGO934 8090794 1

65

Item XI. 3.



Alininum truck tool boxes Fire Department 3

250 gallon Poly Tank Fire Department 1

750 gallon Poly Tank Fire Department 1

Coleman Powermate 5,000 generator Fire Department Coleman 5,000 970301A 1

Genrac 15000 generator Fire Department Genrac 15,000 8090794 1

 Honda 10,000 generator Fire Department Honda 10,000 1

This _______________ day of February, 2024

__________________________________________________
Effingham County Board of Commissioners ATTEST:
 

Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk

Pursuant to said resolution the above described surplus property will be demolished,  offered for sale by auction or by sealed bid;  will be traded for newer or alternate equipment or will be 
donated to non‐profit. 

66

Item XI. 3.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    FY 2024 Budget Amendment  

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 2/20/24 

Item Description: Consideration to approve an amendment to the FY 2024 budget. 
 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting approval of an amendment to the FY 2024 budget. 
 

Executive Summary: 

Each year the Board of Commissioners proposes a tentative budget. During the year, 

the Board receives requests from agencies and department heads to adjust the budget. 

Additionally, other factors, such as revenue, may fluctuate thereby allowing the Board to 

direct that additional expenditures be made. Therefore, a formal budget resolution 

incorporating these factors is made to adjust the budget accordingly.  

 

Background: 

Georgia Law 6-81-3. Requires the establishment of fiscal year; requirement of annual 
balanced budget; adoption of budget ordinances or resolutions generally; budget 
amendments; uniform chart of accounts. Section (b)(1) notes that each unit of local 
government shall adopt and operate under an annual balanced budget for the general 
fund, each special revenue fund, and each debt service fund in use by the local 
government. The annual balanced budget shall be adopted by ordinance or resolution 
and administered in accordance with this article. 
 
  
The budget amendment attached reflects the following changes: 

1. Allocating additional funding for Recreation & Sports Management for 
additional baseball equipment and pitching machines.  
 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the resolution to amend the budget for FY 2024.  
2. Do not approve the resolution. 

3. Provide staff with direction. 

4.  

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the resolution to amend the budget 

for FY 2024. 

 

Other Alternatives:  

67

Item XI. 4.



N/A  

 

Department Review:  

Finance 

 

Funding Source: 

Fund Balance 

 

Attachments: 

FY 2024 budget amendment resolution 

68

Item XI. 4.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
           Resolution# ____________ 

 

State of Georgia 

County of Effingham 

 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY 2024 BUDGET 

 
WHEREAS, the FY 2024 budget of Effingham County was adopted on June 6th, 2023 

and; WHEREAS, it is necessary to further amend said budget to reflect desired changes and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the County Effingham, 

Georgia that the following amendment be made: 

  

 
 
 

This amendment allocates funding for Recreation & Sports Management in operating supplies. 

 
 Approved this _____ day of ___________   2024. 
 
Attest: 
 
 
                                          
Stephanie D.  Johnson, County Clerk   Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairman  

DEPT DEPT NAME ACCT NAME ACCT NO. TYPE AMOUNT DESCRIPTION

029 RECREACTION OPERATING SUPPLIES 270-6110-029-53-1102 EXP 17000.00 allocate funds for baseball equip & pitching machines

029 RECREACTION CASH CARRY FORWARD 270-38-9015 FB -17000.00 allocate FB for baseball equip & pitching machines

0.00 net entries

69

Item XI. 4.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:   Addendum No. 16 to the Effingham County Financial Policies 

Author:  Mark W. Barnes, Finance Director 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 2/20/24  

Item Description: Consideration to approve Addendum No. 16 to the Effingham 
County Financial Policies 

 

 

Summary Recommendation:   

Staff recommends approving Addendum No. 16 to the Effingham County Financial 

Policies which defines surplus fund balance and its uses, defines limitations on debt and 

defines the County investment policy. 

 

Executive Summary 

The county recently engaged Davenport & Company to assist with several financial 

projects.  This included a review of our financial policies, and after that review 

Davenport has proposed several changes contained in this addendum to our financial 

policies. 

 

The first proposed change is under the ‘Fund Balance’ heading on page 26.  It creates a 

new sub-section F-4.  The Board previously approved setting a minimum fund balance 

requirement of 25% of annual expenditures and this addendum proposes that any fund 

balance in excess of 40% be considered surplus fund balance and available for one-

time expenditures, such as capital outlays. 

 

The second proposed change is under the ‘Financing and Debt Management’ heading 

on page 32, and it creates a new section M.  This section defines the maximum debt 

that the County can take on as being 1.75% of the total taxable full value (market value) 

of the County.  Debt service can be no more than 15% of operating expenditures.  Self-

supporting enterprise funds may be excluded from these percentages. 

 

The final proposed change creates an entirely new heading in the policies, 

‘Investments’.  The County does not currently have a formally defined investment policy.  

This policy describes the fundamentals of County investments and describes which 

investments the County may participate in under Georgia law.  The proposed policy is 

very similar to policies of other comparable local governments. 

 

70

Item XI. 5.



Davenport recommended these changes in general, with County staff determining the 

particulars of the changes.  Having these policy changes in place will not just help 

financial governance but will improve how rating agencies and other stakeholders view 

the County. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the proposed addendum to the financial policies. 
2. Do not approve the proposed addendum to the financial policies. 
3. Provide staff with direction 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

4. Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the proposed addendum to the 
financial policies. 

 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

Department Review: (list departments) 

Finance, County Manager 

 

Funding Source: 

No funding required 

 

Attachments: 

Addendum No. 16 to the Effingham County Financial Policies 

 

 

 

71

Item XI. 5.



Financial Policy Addendum No. 16 

Fund Balance 
 

4. Surplus fund balance: Fund balance will be considered a surplus if over 35% of the 

current year's expenditures. Should unassigned fund balance ever exceed 35%, the 

County will consider such fund balance surplus for one time expenditures that are 

non-recurring in nature and which will not require addition future expense outlays for 

maintenance, additional staffing or other recurring expenditures. 

 

Financing and Debt Management 
 

m.  Limitations on Debt. Georgia law limits the amount of general obligation debt that the 

County may issue to 10% of the assessed value of all taxable property located within 

the boundaries of the County (Georgia Constitution, Article 9, Section 5, Paragraph 1).  

However, the County takes a more conservative approach and limits the issuance of all 

tax supported debt, which includes any General Obligation, Intergovernmental 

Agreement, SPLOST and Long Term Lease Obligations, to no more than 1.75% of Total 

Taxable Full Value (Market Value) of the County. Additionally, total tax supported debt 

service including General Obligation, Intergovernmental Agreement and Long Term 

Lease obligations, but excluding SPLOST debt, will not exceed 15% of the Operating 

Expenditures and Debt Service of the General Fund. Intergovernmental debt that is 

supported by the full faith and credit of the County but is self-supported by enterprise 

fund revenues (or other similar types of revenues), may be excluded from the debt as 

a percent of full value and debt service as a percent of expenditure ratios. 

 
Investments 

 

a. Objective. The objective of this policy is to maximize investment earnings with a 

strong focus on the safety of principal, while remaining sufficiently liquid to meet all 

operating requirements which might be reasonably anticipated. 

b. Scope.  This investment policy applies to all cash and investments which are the 

responsibility of and under the management of the Effingham County Board of 

Commissioners. 

c. Authority to Invest.  The Finance Director of the County is responsible for investment 

activities.  The creation of new investment accounts must be approved by the 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners.  Additional accounts with Georgia Fund I 

(also called LGIP) may be authorized by the Chairman. 

d. Eligible Investments.  The County shall make investments in only those instruments 

that local governments are permitted to invest in under O.C.G.A. 36-83-4.  Those 

instruments are: 

72

Item XI. 5.



 Obligations of this state or of other states 

 Obligations issued by the United States government 

 Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States government or a 

United States government agency 

 Obligations of any corporation of the United States government 

 Prime bankers' acceptances 

 The local government investment pool established by Code Section 36-83-8 

(i.e. Georgia Fund I, also called ‘LGIP’) 

 Repurchase agreements 

 Obligations of other political subdivisions of this state 

 

Eligible investments must have (or be collateralized by other eligible investments that 

have) a long-term rating equal to or greater than Aa3 from Moody's Investors Service, 

AA- from Fitch Ratings, or AA- from Standard & Poor's Rating Services. 

e. Reporting.  Investment activities shall be included in the reporting that financial policies 
require staff to regularly prepare for the Board. 

 

73

Item XI. 5.



EXHIBIT “A” 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County has laid out and 

determined a project designated Baker Park Improvements to expand existing facilities and better 

service the general public, being more particularly described in a plat labeled Baker Park Division 

a Minor Subdivision for Effingham County Board of Commissioners, to which reference is hereby 

made.  

WHEREAS, in order to implement said plan, it is necessary for the Board of 

Commissioners of Effingham County to acquire certain properties located in Effingham County 

that are now owned by private properties; and  

WHEREAS, the property herein described and as listed below, shown on record as 224 

Courthouse Road, Springfield, Georgia is essential for the construction of said project; and 

WHEREAS, the acquisition of such properties is for a public purpose;  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is found by the Board of Commissioners of Effingham County 

that the circumstances are such that it is necessary that the parcels be acquired by condemnation 

under the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 22-2-101 et seq.. 

The Board of Commissioners of Effingham County shall proceed to acquire the lands 

herein described by condemnation under provisions of said Code Section, and the Attorney for the 

Board of Commissioners of Effingham County is authorized and directed to file condemnation 

proceedings to acquire said property. 

RESOLVED, this _______ day of ___________________, 2024. 

Board of Commissioners of Effingham County 

BY:__________________________________ 

Wesley M. Corbitt, Chairperson 

ATTEST:______________________________ 

{SEAL} Stephanie Johnson, Clerk of Commission 

Resolution# 024-009

74

Item XI. 6.



75

Item XI. 6.



 

 

Staff Report 
Subject:    Termination of Easement Agreement 

Author:  Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk 

Department:  Administration 

Meeting Date: February 6, 2024 

Item Description: Consideration to approve a Quitclaim Deed and terminate an Easement 

Agreement between Effingham County Board of Commissioners and Amy M. Helmly and Vicki 

Tuten Renfroe located across a property on Brogdon Road  
 

Summary Recommendation: 

After consulting with staff at EOM Operations it has been determined the easement agreement is 

no longer needed.  Staff recommends approval to terminate the agreement.  
 

Executive Summary: 

The agreement was requested by Joyce A. Tuten.  The family wishes to take over maintenance of 

the ditch and has requested that the county terminate the agreement. The termination agreement 

was drafted by the County Attorney.  

 

Background: 

Staff received a request from Joyce A. Tuten to formalize an informal agreement entered with 

Public Works staff by the late Mr. Jack Tuten pertaining to a ditch created by the county. The Board 

of Commissioners approved a drainage easement agreement on November 5, 2019.   

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the Quitclaim Deed and Termination of Easement Agreement as presented.  
2. Do not approve the Quitclaim Deed andTermination of Easement Agreement 

 

Recommended Alternative: Staff recommends Alternative 1. 
 

Other Alternatives: N/A Department Review: Administration, Public Works, County Attorney 
 

Funding Source: No funding is required. 
 

Attachments: 

1. Quitclaim Deed/Termination of Easement Agreement 
2. Plat of property 
3. Documentation supporting ownership 

 

76

Item XI. 7.



77

Item XI. 7.



78

Item XI. 7.



79

Item XI. 7.



80

Item XI. 7.



81

Item XI. 7.



.------------------------------------------------·· 

I 

LEGEND: 

IRf' %" REBAR FOUND 
IRS %" R£BAR SET 
Pl PROPER I Y LINE 
CIE CONC MDN.. FOl.Nl 
N1F NOW Off FORLIERI. Y 
PP POWER POLE 

EQUIP. USED lfOTAL. STA!ION 
TCIPCON 303 

ERROR CF CLOSURE 
1:24,000 Pl.Ar NOT ¥TEO 

ADOLPH N. MICHEUIS 8c ASSO. 
7.36 SANDY RIDGE ROAD 
~ V»M. GEORGIA '.30467 

AH. (912) 829 3972 

SURVEYORS CERTIF:~CATIONJ 

N 

NOTE: SUSJECT .PROPERTY IS A 
SURVEY or IMAP' :& PARCEL .318 
-22 OF THE ElFttNGHAM COUNTY 
TAX ASSESSORS FILE. 

~ 

\ ~? 
~ 

~ 
~ 

318-22 
N/F 

JOYCE S. TUTEN 

NOTE: BASED UPOM REVIEW 10F THE F.EJM,A. FLOOl!l INSURANCE 
RATE MAP, EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA. REIFERENCING THE 

CURRENT EFFECT!~ SPEiC~ FLOOD H~ARO AREA <SFHA> DATED 
3/1&/2015. THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN ''.ZONE X". <OUTSIDE 
ITHE 500 YEAA f"LOOOPL·AIN> 

318-21 
N/F 

JOYCE S TUTEN 

318-21 
N/F 

. REF:ERENCES: 
PB-:21 PAGE 138 
P8-.3l PAGE 881B 

JOYCE S TUTEN 

0' 

SCALE~ 1" D 100' 

"100' 2:00' TUTN.DGN .JUNE2019 

VICINlnY f\AAR. 

SITE 

NO'T TO SCALE 

SURVEY FOR 

JOYCE S.. TUTEN 

SURVEY TO ESTABLISH A 30' 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT. 

LOCATED IN THE 10TH. G.M.D. 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

SURVEYED 25 JUNE 2019 
PLAT ORAWN 30 ·JUNE 2019 

82

Item XI. 7.



83

Item XI. 7.



84

Item XI. 7.



85

Item XI. 7.



86

Item XI. 7.


	Top
	Item IX. 1.	CONSENT - Docuquest
	1  Staff Report- Docuquest Contract for Tax Comm FC 02-19-20
	2. EXECUTED Docuquest Tax Comm 3-3-2020

	Item IX. 2.	CONSENT - MOU Sexual Assault
	1. Staff Report -NEW - MOU - Sexual Response Assault Response Team
	2. 2021-164 Sexual Assault Response Team_04202021

	Item IX. 3.	CONSENT - Planter's
	1.  Staff Report - Planters Wi-Fi Rec Complex (NEW)
	2.  Planters Wifi Rec 3-20-2018 Fully Executed

	Item IX. 4.	Request Approval to Ratify an Assurances and Maintenance Agreement to FEMA for an Existing Generator Grant Application
	Staff Report_Assurances and Mtn Agmt
	Assurances Doc

	Item IX. 5.	grant application - animal shelter sterilization - GA Dept of Ag
	2024 staff report -GA Dept of Agriculture Sterilization Grant
	DCSP Grant Information _ Georgia Department of Agriculture

	Item IX. 6.	Qualifying Fee Resolution_revised
	Qualifying Fee resolution_ sr
	QUALIFYING FEE RESOLUTION 2024_revised2

	Item X. 1.	Horizon Business Center
	02202024_Horizon Business Center SP
	Horizon Business Center_Sketch Plan

	Item X. 2.	Eric Smith - 2nd Reading
	Smith 2nd Reading
	Smith CU ZMA

	Item XI. 1.	Requesting Approval of Additional Position- Coroner
	Requesting Approval of Additional Position- Coroner 2.20.2024

	Item XI. 2.	Ratification Roundabout Letter
	Staff Report Template
	GDOT - Effingham - Indication of Roundabout Support - Signed TC 02-08-24
	img10262023_0001

	Item XI. 3.	Surplus
	1. Staff Report - Resolution to Surplus
	Copy of Surplus List January 2024 1.26.24 (003)

	Item XI. 4.	FY 2024 budget amendment - recreation baseball equip
	Staff Report FY 2024 Budget Amendment 2-20-24
	Resolution FY 2024 budget amendments 2-20-24 meeting

	Item XI. 5.	financial policies addendum No. 16 - fund balance, debt limits, investment policy
	staff report - amend financial policies investment policy
	financial policies addendum no. 16

	Item XI. 6.	Botkins Condemnation Resolution
	Botkins - Condemnation Resolution
	2022-207 PLAT FINAL SIGNED

	Item XI. 7.	Tuten_Termination of Easement Agreement, Quitclaim Deed
	Tuten Easement Agreement_ sr
	Tuten - Termination of Easement with Exhibits
	318-22_Tuten Drainage Easement
	Joyce Tuten Probate Docs

	Bottom

